



Edition 3.1 2008-06

INTERNATIONAL STANDARD

NORME **INTERNATIONALE**

Magnetic material **Feh** STANDARD PREVIEW Part 2: Methods of measurement of the magnetic properties of electrical steel strip and sheet by means of an Epstein frame

IEC 60404-2:1996+AMD1:2008 CSV Matériaux magnétiques autoritation industrie autoritation in the aircratalog/standards/sist/33e1dbee-5cee-4ee9-ae04-Partie 2: Méthodes de mesure des propriétés amagnétiques des bandes et tôles magnétiques en acier au moyen d'un cadre Epstein





THIS PUBLICATION IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED

Copyright © 2008 IEC, Geneva, Switzerland

All rights reserved. Unless otherwise specified, no part of this publication may be reproduced or utilized in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying and microfilm, without permission in writing from either IEC or IEC's member National Committee in the country of the requester.

If you have any questions about IEC copyright or have an enquiry about obtaining additional rights to this publication, please contact the address below or your local IEC member National Committee for further information.

Droits de reproduction réservés. Sauf indication contraire, aucune partie de cette publication ne peut être reproduite ni utilisée sous quelque forme que ce soit et par aucun procédé, électronique ou mécanique, y compris la photocopie et les microfilms, sans l'accord écrit de la CEI ou du Comité national de la CEI du pays du demandeur. Si vous avez des questions sur le copyright de la CEI ou si vous désirez obtenir des droits supplémentaires sur cette publication, utilisez les coordonnées ci-après ou contactez le Comité national de la CEI de votre pays de résidence.

IEC Central Office 3, rue de Varembé CH-1211 Geneva 20 Switzerland Email: inmail@iec.ch Web: www.iec.ch

About the IEC

The International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC) is the leading global organization that prepares and publishes International Standards for all electrical, electronic and related technologies.

About IEC publications

The technical content of IEC publications is kept under constant review by the IEC. Please make sure that you have the latest edition, a corrigenda or an amendment might have been published.

Catalogue of IEC publications: www.iec.ch/searchpub ARD PREVIEW

The IEC on-line Catalogue enables you to search by a variety of criteria (reference number, text, technical committee,...). It also gives information on projects, withdrawn and replaced publications.

IEC Just Published: <u>www.iec.ch/online news/justpub</u>
 Stay up to date on all new IEC publications. Just Published details twice a month all new publications released. Available on-line and also by email. <u>IEC 60404-2:1996+AMD1:2008 CSV</u>

Electropedia: www.electropedia.otg ds.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/33e1dbee-5cee-4ee9-ae04-

The world's leading online dictionary of electronic and electrical terms containing more than 20 000 terms and definitions in English and French, with equivalent terms in additional languages. Also known as the International Electrotechnical Vocabulary online.

Customer Service Centre: <u>www.iec.ch/webstore/custserv</u>

If you wish to give us your feedback on this publication or need further assistance, please visit the Customer Service Centre FAQ or contact us:

Email: <u>csc@iec.ch</u> Tel.: +41 22 919 02 11 Fax: +41 22 919 03 00

A propos de la CEI

La Commission Electrotechnique Internationale (CEI) est la première organisation mondiale qui élabore et publie des normes internationales pour tout ce qui a trait à l'électricité, à l'électronique et aux technologies apparentées.

A propos des publications CEI

Le contenu technique des publications de la CEI est constamment revu. Veuillez vous assurer que vous possédez l'édition la plus récente, un corrigendum ou amendement peut avoir été publié.

Catalogue des publications de la CEI: <u>www.iec.ch/searchpub/cur_fut-f.htm</u>

Le Catalogue en-ligne de la CEI vous permet d'effectuer des recherches en utilisant différents critères (numéro de référence, texte, comité d'études,...). Il donne aussi des informations sur les projets et les publications retirées ou remplacées.

Just Published CEI: www.iec.ch/online_news/justpub

Restez informé sur les nouvelles publications de la CEI. Just Published détaille deux fois par mois les nouvelles publications parues. Disponible en-ligne et aussi par email.

Electropedia: <u>www.electropedia.org</u>

Le premier dictionnaire en ligne au monde de termes électroniques et électriques. Il contient plus de 20 000 termes et définitions en anglais et en français, ainsi que les termes équivalents dans les langues additionnelles. Egalement appelé Vocabulaire Electrotechnique International en ligne.

Service Clients: <u>www.iec.ch/webstore/custserv/custserv_entry-f.htm</u>

Si vous désirez nous donner des commentaires sur cette publication ou si vous avez des questions, visitez le FAQ du Service clients ou contactez-nous:

Email: <u>csc@iec.ch</u> Tél.: +41 22 919 02 11

Fax: +41 22 919 03 00





Edition 3.1 2008-06

INTERNATIONAL STANDARD

NORME INTERNATIONALE

Magnetic material**sTeh STANDARD PREVIEW**

Part 2: Methods of measurement of the magnetic properties of electrical steel strip and sheet by means of an Epstein frame

IEC 60404-2:1996+AMD1:2008 CSV

Matériaux magnétiquesards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/33e1dbee-5cee-4ee9-ae04-

Partie 2: Méthodes de mesure des propriétés magnétiques des bandes et tôles magnétiques en acier au moyen d'un cadre Epstein

INTERNATIONAL ELECTROTECHNICAL COMMISSION

COMMISSION ELECTROTECHNIQUE INTERNATIONALE

ICS 29.030; 17.220.20

ISBN 2-8318-9835-8

CONTENTS

FC	REW	ORD	4
1	Scop	be and object	6
2	Normative references		
3	General principles of a.c. measurements		
	3.1	Principle of the 25 cm Epstein frame method	7
	3.2	Test specimen	7
	3.3	The 25 cm Epstein frame	7
	3.4	Air flux compensation	9
	3.5	Power supply	9
	3.6	Voltage measurement	9
	3.7	Frequency measurement	10
	3.8	Power measurement	10
4	Procedure for the measurement of the specific total loss		
	4.1	Preparation for measurement	10
	4.2	Adjustment of power supply	10
	4.3	Measurement of power	11
	4.4	Determination of the specific total loss	11
	4.5	Reproducibility of the specific total loss measurement	12
5	Procedure for the determination of the peak value of magnetic polarization, r.m.s. value of magnetic field strength, peak value of magnetic field strength and specific apparent power		
	E 1		<u>۲</u> ۲
	ວ. I 5 2	Principle of measurement i/stable/tandedsizt2211/las 5 as 4 at 0 as 04	۲۱ 12
	5.2 5.3	Penroducibility 744425dab63/jec-60404-2-1996amd1-2008-csv	ے ا
6	Gen	eral principles of d.c. measurements	 14
U	6 1	Principles of the 25 cm Enctoin frame method	11
	6.2		+۱
	0.Z	The 25 cm Enstein frame	14 1/1
	6.4	Air flux compensation	14
	6.5	Power supply	10
	6.6	Apparatus accuracy	15
7	Proc	edure for the d.c. measurement of the magnetic polarization	15
	7 1	Preparation for measurement	15
	72	Determination of the magnetic polarization	10
	7.3	Determination of the magnetic hysteresis loop	
	7.4	Reproducibility of the measurement of the magnetic polarization	
8	Test	report	
An	nex A	(informative) Digital sampling methods for the determination of the magnetic	04
pro	pertie	s	21
D ''	l'a ere		<u>.</u>
BI	mogra	pny	24

l

Figure 1 – Double-lapped joints	17
Figure 2 – The 25 cm Epstein frame	17
Figure 3 – Circuit for the wattmeter method	18
Figure 4 – Circuit for measuring the r.m.s. value of the magnetizing current	18
Figure 5 – Circuit for measuring the peak value of the magnetic field strength using a peak voltmeter	19
Figure 6 – Circuit for measuring the peak value of magnetic field strength using a mutual inductor M_D	19
Figure 7 – Circuit for d.c. testing: to obtain discrete values of magnetic polarization	20
Figure 8 – Circuit for d.c. testing: continuous recording method	20

iTeh STANDARD PREVIEW (standards.iteh.ai)

IEC 60404-2:1996+AMD1:2008 CSV https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/33e1dbee-5cee-4ee9-ae04-74442f5dab63/iec-60404-2-1996amd1-2008-csv

INTERNATIONAL ELECTROTECHNICAL COMMISSION

MAGNETIC MATERIALS -

Part 2: Methods of measurement of the magnetic properties of electrical steel strip and sheet by means of an Epstein frame

FOREWORD

- 1) The International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC) is a worldwide organization for standardization comprising all national electrotechnical committees (IEC National Committees). The object of IEC is to promote international co-operation on all questions concerning standardization in the electrical and electronic fields. To this end and in addition to other activities, IEC publishes International Standards, Technical Specifications, Technical Reports, Publicly Available Specifications (PAS) and Guides (hereafter referred to as "IEC Publication(s)"). Their preparation is entrusted to technical committees; any IEC National Committee interested in the subject dealt with may participate in this preparatory work. International, governmental and non-governmental organizations liaising with the IEC also participate in this preparation. IEC collaborates closely with the International Organization for Standardization (ISO) in accordance with conditions determined by agreement between the two organizations.
- The formal decisions or agreements of IEC on technical matters express, as nearly as possible, an international consensus of opinion on the relevant subjects since each technical committee has representation from all interested IEC National Committees.
- 3) IEC Publications have the form of recommendations for international use and are accepted by IEC National Committees in that sense. While all reasonable efforts are made to ensure that the technical content of IEC Publications is accurate, IEC cannot be held responsible for the way in which they are used or for any misinterpretation by any end user.
- 4) In order to promote international uniformity, IEC National Committees undertake to apply IEC Publications transparently to the maximum extent possible in their national and regional publications. Any divergence between any IEC Publication and the corresponding national or regional publication shall be clearly indicated in the latter. 74442f5dab63/iec-60404-2-1996amd1-2008-csv
- 5) IEC provides no marking procedure to indicate its approval and cannot be rendered responsible for any equipment declared to be in conformity with an IEC Publication.
- 6) All users should ensure that they have the latest edition of this publication.
- 7) No liability shall attach to IEC or its directors, employees, servants or agents including individual experts and members of its technical committees and IEC National Committees for any personal injury, property damage or other damage of any nature whatsoever, whether direct or indirect, or for costs (including legal fees) and expenses arising out of the publication, use of, or reliance upon, this IEC Publication or any other IEC Publications.
- 8) Attention is drawn to the Normative references cited in this publication. Use of the referenced publications is indispensable for the correct application of this publication.
- 9) Attention is drawn to the possibility that some of the elements of this IEC Publication may be the subject of patent rights. IEC shall not be held responsible for identifying any or all such patent rights.

International Standard IEC 60404-2 has been prepared by IEC technical committee 68: Magnetic alloys and steels.

This consolidated version of IEC 60404-2 consists of the third edition (2000) [documents 68/119/FDIS and 68/135/RVD] and its amendment 1 (2008) [documents 68/365/FDIS and 68/369/RVD].

The technical content is therefore identical to the base edition and its amendment and has been prepared for user convenience.

It bears the edition number 3.1.

A vertical line in the margin shows where the base publication has been modified by amendment 1.

This standard supersedes chapters I, II, IV and V of IEC 60404-2:1978.

The standard IEC 60404-11 supersedes chapter VIII of IEC 60404-2:1978.

The standard IEC 60404-13 supersedes chapters VI, VII and IX of IEC 60404-2:1978.

Chapter III of IEC 60404-2:1978 is cancelled.

The committee has decided that the contents of the base publication and its amendments will remain unchanged until the maintenance result date indicated on the IEC web site under "http://webstore.iec.ch" in the data related to the specific publication. At this date, the publication will be

- reconfirmed,
- withdrawn,
- replaced by a revised edition, or
- amended.

The contents of the corrigendum of March 2018 have been included in this copy.

iTeh STANDARD PREVIEW (standards.iteh.ai)

<u>IEC 60404-2:1996+AMD1:2008 CSV</u> https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/33e1dbee-5cee-4ee9-ae04-74442f5dab63/iec-60404-2-1996amd1-2008-csv

MAGNETIC MATERIALS –

Part 2: Methods of measurement of the magnetic properties of electrical steel strip and sheet by means of an Epstein frame

1 Scope and object

This part of IEC 60404 is applicable to grain oriented and non-oriented electrical sheet and strip for a.c. measurements of magnetic properties at frequencies up to 400 Hz and for d.c. magnetic measurements.

The object of this part is to define the general principles and the technical details of the measurement of the magnetic properties of electrical steel sheet and strip by means of an Epstein frame.

The Epstein frame is applicable to test specimens obtained from electrical steel sheets and strips of any grade. The a.c. magnetic characteristics are determined for sinusoidal induced voltages, for specified peak values of magnetic polarization and for a specified frequency.

The measurements are to be made at an ambient temperature of (23 ± 5) °C on test specimens which have first been demagnetized.

(standards.iteh.ai)

Measurements at higher frequencies are to be made in accordance with IEC 60404-10.

NOTE Throughout this standard the term "magnetic polarization" is used as defined in IEC 60050(221). In some standards of the IEC 60404 series the term "magnetic flux density" was used ce-4ee9-ae04-

74442f5dab63/iec-60404-2-1996amd1-2008-csv

2 Normative references

The following referenced documents are indispensable for the application of this document. For dated references, only the edition cited applies. For undated references, the latest edition of the referenced document (including any amendments) applies.

IEC 60050-221, International Electrotechnical Vocabulary – Chapter 221: Magnetic materials and components

IEC 60404-4, Magnetic materials – Part 4: Methods of measurement of d.c. magnetic properties of magnetically soft materials

IEC 60404-8-3, Magnetic materials – Part 8-3: Specifications for individual materials – Coldrolled electrical non-alloyed and alloyed steel sheet and strip delivered in the semi-processed state

IEC 60404-8-4, Magnetic materials – Part 8-4: Specifications for individual materials – Cold-rolled non-oriented electrical steel sheet and strip delivered in the fully-processed state

IEC 60404-8-7, Magnetic materials – Part 8-7: Specifications for individual materials – Cold-rolled grain-oriented electrical steel sheet and strip delivered in the fully-processed state

IEC 60404-10, Magnetic materials – Part 10: Methods of measurement of magnetic properties of magnetic sheet and strip at medium frequencies

IEC 60404-13, Magnetic materials – Part 13: Methods of measurement of density, resistivity and stacking factor of electrical steel sheet and strip

3 General principles of a.c. measurements

3.1 Principle of the 25 cm Epstein frame method

The 25 cm Epstein frame which comprises a primary winding, a secondary winding and the specimen to be tested as a core, forms an unloaded transformer whose characteristics are measured by the method described in the following subclauses.

3.2 Test specimen

The strips to be tested are assembled in a square, having double-lapped joints (see figure 1), thus forming four branches of equal length and equal cross-sectional area.

The strips shall be sampled in accordance with the appropriate product standard in the IEC 60404-8 series.

They shall be cut by a method which will produce substantially burr-free edges and, if so specified, heat treated in accordance with the corresponding product standard. They shall have the following dimensions:

- width $b = 30 \text{ mm} \pm 0.2 \text{ mm};$
- length 280 mm $\leq l \leq$ 320 mm.

The lengths of the strips shall be equal within a tolerance of ± 0.5 mm.

When strips are cut parallel or normal to the direction of rolling, the edge of the parent sheet shall be taken as the reference direction.

The following tolerances shall apply for the angle between the specified and actual direction of cutting: https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/33e1dbee-5cee-4ee9-ae04-74442f5dab63/iec-60404-2-1996amd1-2008-csv

±1° for grain oriented steel sheet;

±5° for non-oriented steel sheet.

Only flat strips shall be used. Measurements shall be made without additional insulation.

The number of strips comprising the test specimen shall be a multiple of four and is specified in the corresponding product standard. However, the active mass of the test specimen (see equation (1)) shall be at least 240 g for strips 280 mm long.

3.3 The 25 cm Epstein frame

The 25 cm Epstein frame (hereinafter referred to as the Epstein frame) shall consist of four coils into which the strips making up the test specimen are inserted (see figure 2).

A mutual inductor for air flux compensation is included with the Epstein frame.

The winding formers supporting the coils are made of hard insulating material, such as phenolic paper. They have a rectangular cross-section with 32 mm inner width. A height of approximately 10 mm is recommended.

The coils shall be fixed to an insulating and non-magnetic base in such a way as to form a square (see figure 2). The length of the sides of the square formed by the internal edges of the strips of the test specimen shall be $220 \frac{+1}{-0}$ mm (see figure 2).

Each of the four coils shall have two windings:

- a primary winding, on the outside (magnetizing winding);
- a secondary winding, on the inside (voltage winding).

NOTE An electrostatic screen may be provided between these windings.

The windings shall be distributed uniformly over a minimum length of 190 mm, each coil having one quarter of the total number of turns.

The individual primary windings of the four coils shall be connected in series, as shall be the secondary windings. The number of primary and secondary turns may be adapted to the particular conditions prevailing with regard to the power source, measuring equipment and frequency.

NOTE The total number of turns generally used and recommended is 700 or 1 000.

In order to reduce the effect of the impedances of the windings as much as possible, the following requirements shall be met:

$$\frac{R_1}{N_1^2} \le 1,25 \cdot 10^{-6} \ \Omega \qquad \frac{R_2}{N_2^2} \le 5 \cdot 10^{-6} \ \Omega$$

$$iTe_{W_1}^{L_1} \leq \frac{1}{2} \leq \frac{1}{2$$

where

 R_1 and R_2 are the resistances of the primary and secondary windings, respectively, in ohms;

L₁ and L₂ are the inductances. of athe / primary siande secondary windings, respectively, in henrys; 74442f5dab63/iec-60404-2-1996amd1-2008-csv

 N_1 and N_2 are the total number of turns of the primary and secondary windings, respectively.

NOTE These requirements are satisfied, for example, if windings with the following characteristics are used:

- total number of turns: $N_1 = 700$, $N_2 = 700$;
- primary (outer) winding: each of the four coils carries 175 turns of two copper wires connected in parallel, each with a nominal cross-sectional area of approximately 1,8 mm², wound side by side in three layers;
- secondary winding: each of the four coils carries 175 turns of one copper wire with a nominal cross-sectional area of 0,8 mm² wound in one layer.

The effective magnetic path length, l_m , of the magnetic circuit shall be conventionally assumed to be equal to 0,94 m. Therefore, the active mass, m_a , that is the mass of the test specimen which is magnetically active, is given by:

$$m_{\rm a} = \frac{l_{\rm m}}{4 l} m \tag{1}$$

where

l is the length of a test specimen strip, in metres;

- $l_{\rm m}$ is the conventional effective magnetic path length, in metres ($l_{\rm m}$ = 0,94 m);
- *m* is the total mass of the test specimen, in kilograms;
- m_a is the active mass of the test specimen, in kilograms.

3.4 Air flux compensation

The mutual inductor for air flux compensation shall be located in the centre of the space enclosed by the four coils, its axis being directed normal to the plane of the axes of these coils. The primary winding of the mutual inductor shall be connected in series with the primary winding of the Epstein frame, and the secondary winding of the mutual inductor shall be connected to the secondary winding of the Epstein frame in series opposition (see figure 3).

The adjustment of the value of the mutual inductance shall be made so that, when passing an alternating current through the primary windings in the absence of the specimen in the apparatus, the voltage measured between the non-common terminals of the secondary windings shall be no more than 0,1 % of the voltage appearing across the secondary winding of the test apparatus alone.

Thus the average value of the rectified voltage induced in the combined secondary windings is proportional to the peak value of the magnetic polarization in the test specimen.

3.5 Power supply

The power supply shall have a low impedance and a high stability of voltage and frequency. During measurements, the voltage and frequency variations shall not exceed ± 0.2 % of the required value.

For the determination of the specific total loss, the specific apparent power and the r.m.s. value of the magnetic field strength, the form factor of the secondary voltage shall be $1,111 \pm 1$ %.

NOTE This is possible in several ways. for example by using an electronically controlled power supply or a negative feedback power amplifier. The form factor of the secondary voltage is the ratio of its r.m.s. value to its average rectified value.

Two voltmeters, one responsive to responsive to average rectified values shall be used to determine the form factor 2-1996amd1-2008-csv

NOTE The waveform of the secondary induced voltage should be checked with an oscilloscope to ensure that only the fundamental component is present.

3.6 Voltage measurement

The secondary voltage of the Epstein frame shall be measured by means of appropriate voltmeters having an input impedance greater than or equal to 1 000 Ω /V.

NOTE For the application of digital sampling methods, see Annex A.

3.6.1 Average type voltmeter

A voltmeter responsive to average rectified values having an accuracy of ± 0.2 % or better shall be used.

NOTE The preferred instrument is a digital voltmeter.

3.6.2 RMS voltmeter

A voltmeter responsive to r.m.s. values having an accuracy of ±0,2 % or better shall be used.

NOTE The preferred instrument is a digital voltmeter.

3.6.3 Peak voltmeter

A voltmeter responsive to peak values having an accuracy of ±0,5 % or better shall be used.

3.7 Frequency measurement

A frequency meter having an accuracy of $\pm 0,1$ % or better shall be used.

NOTE For the application of digital sampling methods, see Annex A.

3.8 **Power measurement**

The power shall be measured by a wattmeter having an accuracy of ± 0.5 % or better at the actual power factor and crest factor.

NOTE For the application of digital sampling methods, see Annex A.

The resistance of the voltage circuit of the wattmeter shall be at least 5 000 times its reactance, unless the wattmeter is compensated for its reactance.

If a current measuring device is included in the circuit it shall be short-circuited when the secondary voltage has been adjusted and the loss is being measured.

4 Procedure for the measurement of the specific total loss

NOTE For the application of digital sampling methods, see Annex A.

4.1 Preparation for measurement

The Epstein frame and measuring equipment shall be connected as shown in figure 3.

The test specimen shall be weighed and its mass determined to within $\pm 0,1$ %. After weighing, the strips shall be stacked into the coils of the Epstein frame with double lapped joints at the corners and with the same number of strips in each branch of the frame such that the length of the internal side of the square so formed is (220 ± 10^{-1}) mm. Where strips are cut half parallel and half perpendicular to the direction of rolling, the strips cut in the direction of rolling shall be inserted in two opposite branches of the frame and those cut perpendicular to the direction of rolling inserted in the other two branches. Care shall be taken to ensure that the air gap between the strips in the overlapping portions is as small as possible. It is permissible to apply a force of about 1 N to each corner, normal to the plane of the overlapping strips.

The test specimen shall then be demagnetized in a decreasing alternating magnetic field of an initial level higher than used in previous measurements.

4.2 Adjustment of power supply

The power supply output shall be slowly increased, whilst observing the ammeter in the primary circuit to ensure that the wattmeter current circuit is not overloaded, until the average rectified value of the secondary voltage $\overline{|U_2|}$ of the Epstein frame has reached the required value. This is calculated from the desired value of magnetic polarization by means of:

$$\overline{\left|U_{2}\right|} = 4 f N_{2} \frac{R_{i}}{R_{i} + R_{t}} A \hat{J}$$

$$\tag{2}$$

where

 $|U_2|$ is the average value of the rectified voltage induced in the secondary winding, in volts;

A is the cross-sectional area of the test specimen, in square metres;

f is the frequency, in hertz;

 \hat{J} is the peak value of magnetic polarization, in teslas;

 N_2 is the total number of turns of the secondary winding;

 R_{i} is the total resistance of the instruments in the secondary circuit, in ohms;

 $R_{\rm t}$ is the series resistance of the secondary windings and mutual inductor, in ohms.

The cross-sectional area of the test specimen is given by the equation:

$$A = \frac{m}{4 l \rho_{\rm m}} \tag{3}$$

where

A is the cross-sectional area of the test specimen, in square metres;

m is the total mass of the test specimen, in kilograms;

l is the length of a test specimen strip, in metres;

 ρ_m is the conventional density, or the value determined in accordance with IEC 60404-13, of the test material, in kilograms per cubic metre.

4.3 Measurement of power (standards.iteh.ai)

The ammeter in the primary circuit shall be short circuited and the secondary voltage readjusted if necessary. The form factor of the secondary voltage shall be determined in accordance with 3.5 and then the wattmeter reading shall be recorded.

4.4 Determination of the specific total loss

The power, $P_{\rm m}$, measured by the wattmeter includes the power consumed by the instruments in the secondary circuit. The total loss, $P_{\rm c}$, of the test specimen shall therefore be calculated using the equation:

$$P_{\rm c} = \frac{N_1}{N_2} P_{\rm m} - \frac{\left(1,111 \left|\overline{U_2}\right|\right)^2}{R_{\rm i}}$$
(4)

where

 $P_{\rm c}$ is the calculated total loss of the test specimen, in watts;

 N_1 is the total number of turns of the primary winding;

 N_2 is the total number of turns of the secondary winding;

 $P_{\rm m}$ is the power measured by the wattmeter, in watts;

 $R_{\rm i}$ is the total resistance of the instruments in the secondary circuit, in ohms;

 $|U_2|$ is the average value of the rectified voltage induced in the secondary winding, in volts.

The measured specific total loss, P_s , is obtained by dividing P_c by the active mass m_a of the test specimen.

$$P_{\rm s} = \frac{P_{\rm c}}{m_{\rm a}} = \frac{P_{\rm c}4\,l}{m\,l_{\rm m}} \tag{5}$$

where

- $P_{\rm s}$ is the specific total loss of the test specimen, in watts per kilogram;
- *l* is the length of a test specimen strip, in metres;
- $l_{\rm m}$ is the conventional effective magnetic path length, in metres ($l_{\rm m}$ = 0,94 m);
- *m* is the total mass of the test specimen, in kilograms;
- m_a is the active mass of the test specimen, in kilograms;
- $P_{\rm c}$ is the calculated total loss of the test specimen, in watts.

4.5 Reproducibility of the specific total loss measurement

The reproducibility of the results obtained from the procedures described in this subclause is characterized by a relative standard deviation of 1,5 % for measurements on grain oriented material at magnetic polarizations up to 1,7 T and for measurements on non-oriented material up to 1,5 T.

For measurements at higher magnetic polarizations, it is expected that the relative standard deviation will be increased.

5 Procedure for the determination of the peak value of magnetic polarization, r.m.s. value of magnetic field strength, peak value of magnetic field strength and specific apparent power

iTeh STANDARD PREVIEW

This clause describes measuring methods for the determination of the following characteristics: (standards.iteh.ai)

- peak value of magnetic polarization \hat{J} ;
- r.m.s. value of magnetic field strength 77,996+AMD1:2008 CSV
- https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/33e1dbee-5cee-4ee9-ae04 peak value of magnetic field strengthed 60404-2-1996amd1-2008-csv
- specific apparent power S_s .

5.1 Test specimen

The test specimen shall comply with 3.2.

5.2 Principle of measurement

5.2.1 Peak value of magnetic polarization \hat{J}

The peak value of magnetic polarization shall be determined from the average value of the secondary rectified voltage measured as described in clause 4 and calculated from equation 2.

5.2.2 RMS value of magnetic field strength

The r.m.s. value of the magnetic field strength shall be calculated from the r.m.s. value of the current, measured by an r.m.s. ammeter in the circuit shown in figure 4. Alternatively a precision resistor, of value typically in the range $0,1 \Omega$ to 1Ω of an accuracy of 0,1 %, shall be connected in place of the ammeter and the voltage developed across this resistor shall be measured using a voltmeter responsive to r.m.s. values conforming to the requirements of 3.6. The frequency shall be set to the desired value. The peak value of the magnetic polarization shall be set by adjusting the secondary voltage of the Epstein frame to the required value calculated from equation 2. The r.m.s. value of the current shall then be determined and recorded. The r.m.s. value of the magnetic field strength shall be calculated from the equation:

$$\tilde{H} = \frac{N_1}{l_m} \tilde{I}_1 \tag{6}$$

where

 \tilde{H} is the r.m.s. value of magnetic field strength, in amperes per metre;

 \tilde{l}_1 is the r.m.s. value of magnetizing current, in amperes;

 $l_{\rm m}$ is the conventional effective magnetic path length, in metres ($l_{\rm m}$ = 0,94 m);

 N_1 is the total number of turns of the primary winding.

5.2.3 Peak value of magnetic field strength

The peak value of the magnetic field strength shall be derived from the peak value of the magnetizing current \hat{l}_1 which is obtained by measuring the voltage drop across a known precision resistor *R* of an accuracy of 0,1 %, using a peak voltmeter as shown in figure 5. For this measurement, the form factor of the secondary voltage is allowed to exceed the specified value (see 3.5).

- 13 -

The peak magnetic field strength shall be calculated from the equation:

$$\hat{H} = \frac{N_1}{l_m} \hat{l}_1 \tag{7}$$

where

 \hat{H} is the peak value of magnetic field strength, in amperes per metre;

- \hat{l}_1 is the peak value of magnetizing current $\hat{l}_1 = R$ in amperes; (standards. Iteh.ai)
- $l_{\rm m}$ is the conventional effective magnetic path length of test specimen ($l_{\rm m}$ = 0,94 m);
- N_1 is the total number of turns of the primary winding of the Epstein frame.

https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/33e1dbee-5cee-4ee9-ae04-

Alternatively, the peak value of the magnetizing current \hat{f}_{4} ican be determined by measuring the average rectified value of the voltage appearing across the secondary winding of a mutual inductor M_{D} of an accuracy of 0,5 %, the primary winding of which is connected in series with the primary winding of the Epstein frame. With this method it is necessary to ensure (e.g. by observing the waveform on an oscilloscope) that there are no more than two zero crossings per cycle of the voltage waveform of the secondary winding of the mutual inductor. The circuit is given in figure 6. The voltmeter can be the same instrument as is used for measuring the secondary voltage of the Epstein frame. With this method, the peak value of the magnetic field strength shall be calculated from the equation:

$$\hat{H} = \frac{N_1}{4 f M_D l_m} \cdot \frac{R_v + R_m}{R_v} \cdot \overline{U}_m$$
(7a)

where

 $M_{\rm D}$ is the mutual inductance in the circuit given in figure 6, page 35, in henrys;

 $R_{\rm m}$ is the resistance of the secondary winding of M_D, in ohms;

- R_v is the internal resistance of the average type voltmeter, in ohms;
- $\overline{U}_{\rm m}$ is the average rectified value of the voltage induced in the secondary winding of M_D, in volts.